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ABOUT COVER
Towards new horizon. At Elecon we put in a lot of effort to be ‘Always a step ahead in technology’. 
Our expertise, excellence and experience provides us with a strong platform to reach higher heights 
and add to the list of our milestones.

We are the first company in India to manufacture highly sophisticated mechanised equipment for 
Bulk Material Handling. Elecon’s Material Handling Equipment has found a niche for them in almost 
all the industrial sectors.   

We have supplied over 225 stacker/reclaimer/stacker cum reclaimer with boom length up to 60 
meters. We have stacked our efforts and worked hard to claim our spot as one of the largest Asian 
manufacturer of Material Handling Equipment. 

In our endeavour to constantly enhance our self we have set a new benchmark for the industry and 
scaled new heights, but these achievements have made us more humble and led us to focus even 
more on innovation.

We are committed to continuous improvement to provide our customers with the most ultramodern 
equipments and plants. We are committed to be ‘Always a Step Ahead in Technology’.
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Elecon EPC Projects Ltd. is a subsidiary Company of Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited, a Company formed to 
manage the Core Material Handling Equipment product 
range and engineering expertise that were formed by 
transfer of MHE undertaking of Elecon Engineering 
Company Ltd. to Elecon EPC Projects Ltd., by way of slump 
sale and transfer of MHE business of Prayas Enginnering 
Ltd. and EMTICI Engineering Ltd. to Elecon EPC Projects 
Ltd. by way of demerger. Elecon EPC Projects Ltd. is the 
3rd largest Material Handling Equipment Company in 
India with in-house design, manufacturing, fabrication, 
component manufacturing and support services in a 
vertically integrated model.

The Company was the first company in India to have 
manufactured sophisticated equipment for Bulk Material 
Handling and have their products and solutions deployed 
in almost every industrial sector in India. Its product 
range includes design, engineering, manufacture, supply, 
erection and commissioning of:

•	 Wagon	tipplers

•	 Bucket	wheel	stacker/reclaimers

•	 Barrel-type	blender	reclaimers

•	 Fertilizer	reclaiming	scrapers

•	 Limestone	pre-homegenizing	and	blending	plants

•	 Single	and	twin	bucket	wheel	bridge-type	reclaimers

•	 Crawler-mounted	trippers

•	 Stationary	and	shiftable	conveying	systems	for	open		
 cast lignite mines

•	 Integrated	coal	handling	plants	for	power	stations

•	 Underground	mining	conveyors

•	 Open-cast	conveying	systems

•	 Ferrous	and	non-ferrous	foundry	products

Elecon EPC delivers Engineering, Procurement, Construction 
(EPC), and project management to governments and 
private sector clients in diverse industries in India and 
around the world. For over half a century, clients have 
depended on Elecon EPC as their company of choice to 
undertake challenging projects, many in remote areas of 
the world. Clients depend on the expertise of Elecon EPC’s 
people assets to deliver projects safely, on schedule, within 
budgets, and with the quality they expect. 

With an established set-up and a strong and diversified 
products portfolio, the Company is amongst the key 
manufacturer of various products that are offered to 
various industries including Power, Chemicals, Steel, 
Plastic, Elevators, Palm Oil, Marine Engineering, Cement, 
Sugar, Mining, Petroleum, Coal Handling and Fertilizers; 
this helps the Company distribute risk well. 

ELECON EPC AT GLANCE
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The Material Handling Business has suffered the most in the wake of weaker reforms and lack of 
positive Governmental clearances. The Management has taken tough initiatives to ride through the 
challenging conditions and severe cash flow crunch facing the infrastructure industry.  With continued 
focus on completing projects on hand,  positive policy initiatives from the Government and support of 
financial institutions in the wake of positive environment in the financial markets, we expect to come 
out of difficult times in the next four to six quarters.

Prashant Amin   - Director

It has been challenging year for Indian industry and significantly impacted the performance of the 
country’s industrial sector due to lack of Investment, inflation, high interest rates, policy uncertainty 
etc. India’s capital goods sector has registered negative growth over the past three years. However, 
with new stable government in the centre, the investment climate is likely to improve and hence we 
also hope to perform better in FY 2015.

Even as the external environment remained challenging, Elecon EPC Projects Ltd. sustained its financial 
sustainability through various cost control/reduction measures. These initiatives have enabled us to 
reinvent our processes and reinvigorate our business and we are confident that our measures will 
continue to give benefits in the future also. This is further strengthened by comfortable unexecuted 
order position of `1163 Crores as on 31st March 2014.

I would like to say that as we enter into FY 2015, we stay committed to improving operational 
efficiencies, deriving value from group synergies and continuing to reward stakeholders & investors 
with a shared commitment towards profitability and sustainability.

Hemendra Shah   - Chief Financial Officer

Elecon EPC Projects Limited (EEPL) had a fairly good 2013-14. EEPL, like any other organization in the 
Bulk Materials Handling Industry, was not spared by the wrath of the current economic turmoil. We 
managed to come out with just few scratches. Though we received fewer big projects compared to 
the peak years, our company’s strong background and brand image paired with our timely counter 
measures against the market challenges; have formed a foundation for brighter future.  

Despite of uncertainties in the market, our efforts towards technological advancements as well as 
strategic tie-ups to manufacture higher capacity, innovative and cost-effective products have started 
paying off and the difficulties are easing slowly. These efforts are complimented by our TPM activities 
which are targeted towards superior manufacturing performance and optimum utilization of resources. 

Arvind Shore   - CEO

The year 2013-14 has probably been the most difficult year for the Indian Economy as well as 
our Company in the last decade. Tighter monetary policy, high interest rates and slow-down in 
infrastructure development caused many projects to slow down. This resulted in our working capital 
being blocked in some projects under execution for much longer period than envisaged, resulting in 
shortage of working capital for execution of other projects, higher borrowing and higher Interest Cost. 

With the stable Government at Center, revival of business is expected gradually in India. As the revival 
of the Indian Infrastructure industry is likely to take some time, fresh order bookings expected this year 
are to the tune of approximately `700 Crores. However, with unexecuted order worth `1163 Crores as 
on 31st March, 2014, our Company’s overall performance will improve in the year 2014-15.

Prayasvin Patel   - President (Operations)

MANAGEMENT INSIGHT
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Strengths:

Elecon EPC maintains a state of the art manufacturing 
facility spanning 1,17,000 sq. mt., consisting of new 
generation CNC and NC machines tools and equipment 
for manufacturing, quality control and testing.  Sound 
manufacturing infrastructure when coupled with Elecon 
EPC’s skilled workforce, ensures our products and solutions 
are robust and dependable for years to come. 

The Company caters to the Core sectors such as Power, Steel, 
Cement and fertilizers. Through its modern manufacturing 
facilities and technical collaborations with leading 
international players, Company is able to supply diversified 
products to its customers from various sectors without 
compromising the quality.

Achievements:

- A prestigious order worth `246.78 Crore received from 
NTPC - Gadarwara for Supply for Coal Handling Plant 
Package (2 * 800 MW).

- An order of  `17.09 Crores received from NTPC for 
various Spares.

- An order of `16.62 Crores received from Tamilnadu 
Electricity Board for various Spares.

- An order of `14.48 Crores received from NMDC Limited 
for Idlers.

- Various Orders worth `92.08 Crores received from 
various clients for supply of Stacker & Reclaimer, Crusher, 
Idlers & Pulleys, Spares, wagon Tippler etc.

Growth Drivers:

With the top agenda for Power and Infrastructure Sector of 
newly formed stable government at Center, there is bound to 
be a rise in demand from different industry verticals such as 
Power, Steel, Cement, Sugar etc. along with allied industries. 
This will help the economy regain its growth momentum. 
More importance to the industries like Power, Port etc. will 
spur the demand resulting into growth of Material Handling 
Equipment industry.

CNC Heavy Duty Lathe

STRENGTHS, ACHIEVEMENTS &
GROWTH DRIVERS
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Sales Industrywise
(From 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014)

Orderbook Industrywise
(From 1st April, 2013 to 31st March, 2014)

Pending Orders Industrywise
(As on 31st March, 2014)

Power 
79.3%

Power 
72.4%

Cement 
10.8%

Others 3.8%

Others 5.5%

Steel 1.0%

Port 2.6%

Port 2.8%

Steel 1.4%

Mining 2.2%

Mining 14.2%

Cement 3.8%

Power 
56.4%

Cement 
16.9%

Others
 10.1%

Mining
12.0%

Port 1.3%
Steel 3.2%

Reversible Hammer Crusher
Capacity: 1100 TPH
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members of ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 23rd Annual 
Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts of 
the Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2014.

PERFORMANCE

During the year ended on 31st March, 2014, the Company 
has achieved total revenue of `50,242.68 Lacs as against the 
total revenue of `66,858.09 Lacs during the previous year. 
The decline in total revenue is because of slow down in 
Indian economy. For the year ended on 31st March, 2014, the 
Company earned Profit before Tax of ̀ 349.96 Lacs as against 
`4198.77 Lacs during the previous year.  The Company holds 
total unexecuted orders worth `1163 Crores as on March 
31, 2014. This will help us to continue to have sustainable 
growth in coming years.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors felt it prudent to retain the earnings for the 

year under review to be ploughed back in business, which 
shall result in further augmentation of the Company’s 
Growth.

DIRECTORS:

Retire by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Mr. Pradip M. Patel, Director retires by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment of Director

In our Company, Independent Director is appointed as 
director liable to retire by rotation as per Section 256 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, an 
Independent Director appointed by the Company and 
holding office as an Independent Director as on the date of 
commencement of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. 01.04.2014 

Apron Feeder
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shall hold office for a term of five consecutive years and not 
be liable to retire by rotation.

Accordingly, Shri Chirayu Amin shall be appointed as 
Independent Director to hold office for a term of five 
consecutive years from 01.04.2014 up to 31.03.2019 and shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation. He fulfills the conditions 
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under for their appointment as Independent Director of the 
Company and is independent of the management.

Members’ approval for their appointment as Independent 
Director has been sought in the notice convening the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, 
with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is 
hereby confirmed that:

•				In	the	preparation	of	the	annual	accounts	of	the	Company	
for the year ended on March 31, 2014, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed.

•				The	Directors	have	selected	such	accounting	policies	and	
applied them consistently and have made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company 
for the year ended on that date;

•	 	 	 	 The	 Directors	 have	 taken	 proper	 and	
sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

•	 	 	 	 The	 accounts	 have	 been	 prepared	 on	 a	
‘going concern’ basis.

AUDITORS

The Companies Auditors M/s. Thacker Butala 
Desai, Chartered Accountants, Navasari, retire 
as Statutory Auditors at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and being 
eligible offer themselves for reappointment. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE / COMPLIANCE 
CERTIFICATE

A report on Corporate Governance, together with 
Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this 
report is annexed to this Report. Your Company is committed 
to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance, 
reinforcing the valuable relationship between the Company 
and its Stakeholders.

Secretarial Compliance Certificate as required under the 
Companies (Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001 received 
from M/s. Devesh Vimal & Co., Company Secretaries of 
Vadodara has been attached to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As required by the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars 
of employees) Rules, 1975 as amended, the names and other 
particulars of employees are set out in Annexure-A, forming 
part of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GOES:

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

- Energy conservation with more focus on continuous

31.03.2014 31.03.2013

(Amount in Lacs)
FINANCIAL RESULTS:                                                    

Profit before Depreciation & provision 

for Taxation

Less: Depreciation

Profit Before Tax

Add/Less: Provision for Taxation

                    Deferred Tax

                    Mat Credit Entitlement

Profit After Tax

 Previous year Balance Brought Forward

Transfer to General Reserve

Proposed Dividend  - Equity Shares

Tax on distributed dividend

Balance Carried forward to Balance sheet

1284.38

934.42

349.96

73.35

180.42

(73.35)

169.54

1621.18

150.00

0.00

0.00

1640.72

5049.45

850.68

4198.77

1061.29

223.45

-

2914.03

(0.08)

300.00

848.56

144.21

1621.18
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 process through improved maintenance practices.

-  Providing natural lighting through translucent sheet to  
stop day time use of Electricity in shop floor area. 

-			 Use	 of	 high	 pressure	 metal	 halide	 Lamps	 for	 factory	
lighting for energy saving measure which has been  
implemented by in house efforts and is continued in 
phase manner.

-   The Power saving by use of T5 tube lights in place of 40  
W Tube lights.

-  The Power saving by use of CFL Lamp in place of 40 W  
GLS Lamp. 

-  Slowly diverted in use LED light in place of metal Halide 
Lamp to reduce the consumption of Electricity.

- Installation of New High efficiency motors for Hoist 
applications of EOT Cranes.

- Installing the AC variable frequency drives in old cranes 
hoist application.

-  Reduce the use of Compressor air; Company has 
introduced electrically operated tools to save the 
electricity.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

(I)  Research and Development

(a) Since inception of the Company and in pursuit of R 
& D endeavors, the Company is regularly incurring 
expenditure on R & D on the following activities.

-  Drawing, Design & Development of new products;

- Continuous improvement of existing products for  
enhanced durability and performance;

- Testing and Adaption of new materials;

-	 New	processes	and	Up	gradation	of	existing	processes;

- Product engineering for enhanced product quality and 
reliability;

- Reduction of rejections and warranty returns;

- Improving New Product Development (NPD) lead time;

- Environment compliance by products and processes;

- Testing and validation of new products;

(b) Benefits derived as a result of R & D: 

 It has resulted in the improvement of quality of the 
products	and	reduced	operation	cost.	Up	gradation	of	

products to the new requirements has been possible 
because of R & D done in the Company since inception 
on a continuous basis & Customers’ satisfaction and 
new business opportunities because of cost, quality and 
latest technology.

(c) Future plan of action: 

 Future R & D efforts will continue along similar lines, as 
at present, but with more focus, thrust and endeavors. 

(d) Expenditure on R & D: 

 In pursuit of R & D endeavors, the Company is 
continuously incurring R & D expenditure both on 
Capital and Revenue, which has not been separately 
reflected but is being shown as part of regular heads of 
accounts in Fixed Assets and in Statement of Profit and 
Loss respectively.

(II)   Technology Absorption, Adaptation, and innovation:

New range of equipment:

•	 High	speed	rollers	suitable	for	8.15	m/s	conveyor	speed,		
less than 0.6 mm TIR and less than 200 gms. low drag force.

•	 Pipe	 conveyor	 of	 7.5	 km	 length	 &	 1500	 TPH	
capacity, one  of the longest conveyors in the world.

•	 Transfer	 car	 with	 ejector	 system	 for	 Wagon	 Transfer.

Capacity Increase in existing equipment:

•	 Stacker-Reclaimer	 with	 2400	 TPH	 stacking	 &	 2400	 TPH	
reclaiming and 60 m boom reach.

•	 1100	TPH	Hammer	crusher	 for	 (-)	5	mm	product	 size	of	
coal. 

Technology adaption: 

•	 Wine	 glass	 type	 roller	 support	 frame	&	 fabricated	 pipe	
frames for belt conveyors.

•	 Up-gradation	of	existing	plant	chutes	for	optimized	flow	
with the help of Chute Analysis software.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO: 

 Foreign Exchange Earning:  `799.74 lacs.

 Foreign Exchange Out Go:  `1393.18 lacs.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not 
accepted any fixed Deposits under the provisions of section 
58A of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies 
(Acceptance of Public Deposits) Rules, 1975. There are no 
unclaimed deposits as on 31st March, 2014. 
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INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS/ PERSONNEL

Your Company is committed to upholding its excellent 
reputation in the field of Industrial Relations. Through 
continuous efforts the Company invests and improvises 
development programmes for its employees.

INSURANCE

The Company takes a very pragmatic approach towards 
insurance. Adequate cover has been taken for all movable 
and immovable assets for various types of risks.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

As trustees of the Company, the Directors acknowledge 
the unstinted support received from Vendors, Traders, 
Customers, Banks, Financial Institutions, Shareholders and 
the Society at large.

The Directors also acknowledge the support of the Auditors, 
Bankers, State and Central Governments’ Officials, Business 
Partners, Solicitors, Advisors and Employees. The growth of 
the Company would not have been possible without their 
unfailing support.

Your Directors look forward to having a long and fruitful 
relationship with all of them.       

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(P. M. Patel)                   (P. C. Amin)
Director                         Director

Date: 22/05/2013

Place: Vallabh Vidyanagar

ANNEXURE-A

Information pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) 
Rules, 1975 and forming part of this Director’s Report for the financial Year ended 31st March, 2014.

Name of Employees employed for a part of the year.

Name

Prayasvin  
B. Patel

BE (Mech.), 
MBA	(USA)

President 
(Operations)

15-05-
2013

360.00 38 Business56
yrs

Age Qualification Date of 
Joining

Designation
(Nature of 
Duty)

Gross 
Remuneration
(Rs. In lacs)

Experience
In years

Last 
Employment



10

Overview

The global economy began its modest recovery in FY 
2013-14 with improved demand from OECD economies 
in the second half of 2013. While the trend is expected 
to accelerate in the current year, the positive outlook is 
subdued by the potential consequences of ‘tapering’ of 
some	 of	 the	 US	 Federal	 Reserve’s	 Quantitative	 Easing	
(QE)	 policies	 which	 were	 undertaken	 in	 the	 aftermath	
of global financial crises. Emerging markets like India 
faced multiple challenges: capital outflows, intense 
exchange rate pressures and volatile current account 
movement. A combination of   persistent inflation, 
fiscal imbalances, external sector vulnerabilities and 
low investments resulted in sluggish domestic demand 
growth. Fiscal and monetary initiatives taken by the 
Indian government and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 
helped stabilize financial market conditions, but the 
domestic macro-economic environment still remains 
challenging. 

Economic	recovery	in	the	US	and	Europe	had	a	positive	
impact on oil demand, which increased by 1.3 million 
barrels per day (MMBPD) in 2013. Crude oil prices 
fluctuated extensively, driven by supply concerns in 
Libya,	 South	 Sudan,	 West	 Africa	 and	 Iraq.	 Higher	 US	
shale oil production helped offset the impact of these 
disruptions with Brent crude oil prices averaging 
marginally lower at $ 108.7 per barrel in 2013.

Industry Structure and Development

The major economies of the world still face many 
structural flaws and policy constraints that hinder more 
investment and faster productivity growth, making the 
medium-term outlook for a significantly faster path of 
global growth more uncertain.

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) cut its growth 
forecast for the global economy to 3.6% this year and 
3.9%	 in	 2015,	 pointing	 to	 the	 threat	 from	 the	 Ukraine	
crisis and the slowdown in major emerging economies. 
While the world economy has picked up pace, anchored 
by	the	United	States	and	China,	the	global	crisis	lender	
pointed to looming risks, from the standoff between 
Russia	 and	 the	 West	 over	 Ukraine,	 to	 poorly	 handled	
policy in countries like Brazil, and deflation in the euro 
area.

In India, a lack of structural reform in the economy, and 
a lack of leadership in the economic direction of the 
country have led to the overall slowdown of the Indian 
economy.  India’s export markets have also experienced 
economic sluggishness, which is part of the problem, 
though domestic issues play a large part. 

Economic growth in fiscal year 2013-14 decelerated to 
4.7% from 5% in FY 2012-13. The growth in India’s real 
GDP is expected to improve to 5.5 per cent in 2014-
15. Moreover, the trend in growth of its components is 
expected to reverse.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

CNC	Laser	Cutting		Machine,	Capacity	Upto	28mm	Thickness
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The GDP growth has been subdued because of poor 
performance of the mining, manufacturing, construction 
and trade, hotels, transport, storage & communication 
services sectors. While the size of the mining sector has 
shrunk on supply constraints, the others have suffered 
due to poor domestic demand, both consumption and 
investment. The agriculture, financial, insurance real 
estate & business services and community, social & 
personal services sectors have grown well in 2013-14.

Your Company continued to perform with stability 
and maintained its momentum in the highly sluggish 
market. The Company focused on cost control measures 
and product mix enrichment to sustain growth and 
profitability in the challenging year.

Opportunities and Threats

Indian industry has come a long way from the command, 
control style of functioning rooted in an inward looking 
Import substitution policy to an export orientation, 
globally competitive, quality driven style of functioning.  
In short term, with improved investment, scenario 
coupled with government continual through and 
reforms, the industrial performance is expected to do 
better.  But in large run, the performance depends on how 
well the reform are initiated by the new government, the 
investment and growth in Infrastructure, the continued 
availability of natural resources avail of low-cost, high 
skill workforce and global market scenario.  For sure is 
that it will gain momentum on the wheel of growth has 
been set to motion.

Now, it is an attractive proposition to manufacture in 
India. But, the new government should have a clear 
set of economic policies in order to kick start a period 
of higher growth for the economy.  Transparent and 
predictable regulations for the infrastructure and 
energy sectors should be a high priority, as should the 
passage of a Goods and Services Tax. The most urgent 
need is to upgrade India’s physical infrastructure to 
encourage domestic and foreign direct investment 
in the manufacturing sector. This will absorb the rural 
labor surplus that is migrating to the cities.

After a period of weak growth in the Engineering 
Equipment industry on account of delays in project 
execution, high import growth and depreciating rupee, 
finally Engineering Equipment industry see some light 
at the end of the tunnel. 

The Engineering Equipment and Machinery market is 
expected to grow at a steady rate in the future. Some of 
the major market drivers include the need for increased 
productivity and the rising demand for engineering 
equipment and machinery in the developing economies.

This demand is expected to rise, keeping in mind the new 
government’s initiatives for infrastructure development. 
In addition, investments in power, oil and gas extraction, 
mining and petrochemicals will add further fillip to the 
industry. Industrial growth and development in the 
manufacturing industry will also add to the momentum 
of the engineering goods industry.

The single most likely threat is the risks associated with 
a possible bumpy exit from the quantitative easing 
programmes	by	 the	U.S	Federal	Reserve	 (Fed)	 threaten	
the global economy. As already seen somewhat during 
last year, efforts by the Fed to pull out of quantitative 
easing programmes could lead to a surge in long term 
interest rates in developed and developing countries. 
Tapering could also lead to a sell-off in global equity 
markets, a sharp decline of capital inflows to emerging 
economies and a spike in the risk premium for external 
financing in emerging economies. These first-round 
shocks in international financial markets could transmit 
quickly to developed and developing economies.

Financial Performance

During the year ended on 31st March, 2014, the Company 
has achieved turnover of `50,242.68 Lacs as against 
the turnover of `66,858.09 Lacs during the previous 
year. The decline in turnover is because of slow down 
in Indian economy. For the year ended on 31st March, 
2014, the Company earned Profit before Tax of `349.96 
Lacs as against `4198.77 Lacs during the previous year.  
The Company holds total unexecuted orders worth 
`1163 Crores as on March 31, 2014. This will help us to 
continue to have sustainable growth in coming years.

Outlook

The Global economy is expected to grow at a pace of 
3.0 per cent in 2014 and 3.3 per cent in 2015, compared 
with an estimated growth of 2.1 per cent for 2013.

According	 to	 the	 United	 Nations	 World	 Economic	
Situation and Prospects 2014 (WESP) report, inflation 
will remain tame worldwide, but the employment 
situation will continue to be challenging.

A few large emerging economies, including China and 
India, managed to backstop the deceleration they 
experienced in the past two years and veered upwards 
moderately. These factors point to increasing global 
growth.

Global demand for Materials Handling Products is 
expected to rise 4 percent annually through 2016 to 
$123.6 billion, according to a new study by The Freedonia 
Group. Furthermore TechNavio’s analysts predict the 
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Material Handling Equipment market in India to grow 
at a CAGR of 15.62 percent through 2011-2015 on the 
strength of increased industrialization across the states. 
There is an increase in investments in industries across 
India by both domestic and international companies, 
driving the demand for Material Handling Equipment. 
The prospects for the Material Handling Equipment 
market in India looks bright with many innovative 
and efficient products being introduced by Material 
Handling Equipment vendors.

The investment demand in India will pick up gradually 
in 2014-15, as the Cabinet Committee on Investments 
(CCI) clears more and more projects. The land acquisition 
process becomes easy post implementation of the 
new Land Acquisition Act. Fast tracking of projects is 
expected to boost the construction activity in India, 
generate new employment and create fresh demand 
for items like cement, steel and machinery. Thus, the 
manufacturing sector is expected see a turnaround in 
2014-15, registering a 2.8 per cent growth, as against a 
0.5 per cent fall estimated for 2013-14. 

To put it in a nutshell, the growth of the Indian economy 
is expected to improve in 2014-15. But, the recovery will 
be mild and gradual.

Risk and Concerns

In our recent economic evaluation, there is a stable 
outlook on the overall economic prospect of the country. 
The challenge of overspending will be curbed and there 
is an anticipation of firm growth and minimal risk of 
large fiscal deficit to GDP ratio. However, with limited 
space for rate cut, RBI is unlikely to ease its policy rates 
in every meet this year due to persistent inflation and 
volatile industrial output and manufacturing prices 
threatening the inflation prospect. RBI is giving full 
attention to the inflation problem, which is undermining 
the fragile economic growth.

Our Company is depends mostly on various projects. 
A Plethora of regulatory issues and policy hurdles may 
contribute towards the slowdown in the implementation 
of new projects. But, after the formation of new 
government, there are good chances of removal of 
policy hurdles in projects. Cement, Power, Mining and 
Manufacturing industries are driving up demand in our 
Company that enable to reduce inventory levels and 
improved order to delivery cycles.

The Company, like any other business entity is subject 
to certain risks which are associated with the nature of 
its business. Some of the risks are at the Company level 
and others are at the economy level. At the Company 
level, the major challenge is to hire and retain the skilled 
manpower which is key to our success. In today’s world 
where technology is changing constantly, it is critical to 
have professionally qualified and experienced manpower 
which can meet the challenges of growing competition. 
At macro level, since the Company’s growth is directly 

proportionate to the growth of the infrastructure sector, 
any slowdown in the sector particularly power, cement 
and steel impacts the Company. 

Further, being an EPC company, the rise in cost of input 
materials such as steel, cement etc. and increase in 
rate of interest impacts the project cost adversely. The 
Company has a policy of keeping a constant check on 
these factors and proactively taking steps to mitigate 
the risks that can impact the growth.

Internal Control System

Internal Controls are continuously evaluated by the 
Internal Auditors and Management. Findings from 
internal audits are reviewed by the Management and 
corrective actions and controls have been put in place 
wherever necessary. Scope of work of Internal Auditors 
covers review of controls on accounting, statutory and 
other compliances and operational areas in addition to 
reviews relating to efficiency and economy in operations. 

Development in Human Resources/Industrial front 

It has been the tradition of the Company to maintain 
excellent industrial relations at all levels. This has 
ensured a very healthy level of enthusiasm within the 
employees. This has enabled the Company to maintain 
its growth despite competition and economic slowdown.

Cautionary Note

The statements forming part of this Report may contain 
certain forward looking remarks within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results, 
performances or achievements of the Company depend 
on many factors which may cause material deviation 
from any future results, performances or achievements.

Significant factors which could make a difference 
to the Company’s operations include domestic 
and international economic conditions, changes in 
Government regulations, tax regime and other statutes.

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly 
amend, modify or revise any forward-looking statements 
on the basis of any subsequent developments, 
information or events.
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CIN: U29219GJ1991PLC015379   AUTHORIZED CAPITAL : ` 50,00,000/-

To, 
The Members
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED
C/o. Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.,
Anand Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar, Gujarat.

We have examined the registers, records, books and papers of ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Company’) as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 1956, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’) read with 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the New Act’) as applicable and the rules made thereunder and also the provisions contained in the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2014. In our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations furnished to us by the Company, 
its officers and agents, we certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year:
1. The Company has kept and maintained all registers as stated in Annexure ‘A’ to this certificate, as per the provisions and 

the rules made thereunder and all entries therein have been duly recorded.
2.     The Company has filed the forms and returns as stated in Annexure ‘B’ to this certificate with the Registrar of Companies, 

Regional Director, Central Government, Company Law Board or other authorities within the time prescribed under the Act 
and the rules made thereunder.

3.      The Company, being a public limited Company, has the minimum prescribed paid up Capital.
4. The Board of Directors duly met SIX times respectively on 01/04/2013, 13/05/2013, 23/05/2013, 14/08/2013, 11/11/2013 

& 06/02/2014 in respect of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and 
signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

5. The Company, being unlisted, was not required to close its Register of Members, during the financial year.
6.       The Annual  General  Meeting  for  the  financial  year  ended  on 31st March 2013 was held on 14th August, 2013 after giving 

due notice to the members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in the Minutes Book 
maintained for the purpose.

7. One Extra-Ordinary General Meetings was held on 17/06/2013 during the financial year after giving due notice to the 
members of the Company and the resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in the Minutes Book maintained for the 
purpose.

8. The Company has not advanced any loan to its directors and/or persons or firms or companies referred in the Section 295 
of the Act/Section 185 of the New Act. 

9. The Company has not entered into any contracts falling within the purview of Section 297 of the Act.
10. The Company has made necessary entries in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act.
11. As there was no instance falling within the purview of section 314 of the Act, the Company has not obtained any approvals 

from the Board of Directors, members or Central Government
12. The Company has not issued any duplicate share certificates during the financial year.
13.    (i)  There was no transfer/transmission of securities during the financial year.  However, the Company has delivered all the 

certificates on allotment of Equity shares in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
 (ii)  The Company has deposited the amount of dividend declared at Annual General Meeting held on 14.08.2013 in a 

separate bank account with IDBI Bank Ltd., within a prescribed period of five days from the date of declaration of such 
dividend.

 (iii)  The Company has paid dividends to all the members within a period of 30 days from the date of declaration. Since, 
there was no unpaid/ unclaimed dividend for a period of 30 days from the date of declaration, the Company was not 
required to transfer any amount to a separate unpaid/ unclaimed Dividend Account.

          (iv)  Since there was neither of unpaid dividend account, application money due for refund, matured deposits, matured 
debentures and the interest accrued thereon which have remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years, 
the Company was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

 (v)  The Company has duly complied with the requirements of section 217 of the Act.
14.   The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There were no appointment of alternate Directors and Directors 

to fill casual vacancy during the financial year. However, appointment of Mr. Chirayu Amin initially as an Additional Director 
and subsequently as a Retiring Director was duly made. Reappointment of Mr. Prashant Amin as a retiring Director was also 
duly made.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
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15. By virtue of the paid up capital of the Company being lesser than ` 5 crores, the Company is not required to appoint 
Managing Director/Whole time Director/Manager pursuant to provisions of section 269 of the Act and accordingly the 
Company has not appointed any Managing director/Wholetime Director/Manager during the year.

16. The Company has not appointed any sole-selling agent during the financial year. 
17. The Company was not required to obtain any approvals of  the Central  Government, Company Law Board,  Regional  Director,   

Registrar  and/or  such  authorities  prescribed  under  the various provisions of the Act during the financial year.
18. The Directors have disclosed their interest in other firms / Companies to the Board of Directors in pursuant to the provisions 

of the Act and the rules made thereunder.
19. The Company has issued 176439 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  during the financial year and complied  with the provisions 

of the Act. However, the Company has not issued Debentures/other security during the year.
20. The Company has not bought back any shares during the financial year.
21. There was no redemption of preference shares/ debentures during the financial year as the Company has issued neither of 

them. 
22. There was no transaction necessitating the Company to keep in abeyance rights to dividend, right shares and bonus shares 

pending registration of transfer of shares.
23. The Company has not accepted deposits including unsecured loans falling within the purview of Section 58A during the 

financial year. 
24. The amount borrowed by the Company from directors,  members, public, financial institutions, banks and others during the 

financial year in  line with the Scheme of Arrangement are within the borrowing limits of the Company pursuant to section 
293(1)(d) of the Act.

25. The Company has not made any loans and investment or given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies corporate 
during the financial year and consequently no entry has been made in the register kept for the purpose.

26. The Company has not altered the provisions of the memorandum with respect to situation of the Company’s registered 
office from one State to another during the year under scrutiny.

27. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to the objects of the Company during the 
year under scrutiny.

28. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to name of the Company during the year 
under scrutiny.

29. The Company has not altered the provisions of the Memorandum with respect to share capital of the Company during the 
year under scrutiny.

30. The Company has not altered its articles of association.
31. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice received by the Company during the financial year, for 

offences under the Act.
32. The Company has not received any money as security from its employees during the financial year.
33. Provisions of Section 418 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not constituted separate 

Provident Fund within the meaning of Section 418 of the Act.

For DEvESH vIMAL & CO.  
Practising Company Secretaries

Place  : Vadodara   vIMAL N. BETAI
Date  : 22-05-2014    Partner
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ANNEXURE – A

Registers as maintained by the Company
1. Register of Charges u/s 143
2. Register of Members u/s 150
3. Books of Accounts u/s 209 as certified by the Auditors
4. Register of Directors, Managing Director, Manager and Secretary u/s 303
5. Register of Directors’ Shareholding u/s 307
6. Minutes Book of Board meetings
7. Minutes Book of General meetings 

ANNEXURE – B

Forms and Returns as filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, during the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2014.

1. Form 32 in respect of appointment of Mr. Kamlesh Patel as a Company Secretary w.e.f  01.04.2013 filed pursuant to 
section 303(2),264(2) or 266(1)(a) and 266(1)(b)(iii) of the Act on 23.04.2013.

2. Form 32 in respect of appointment of Mr. Chirayu Amin as an additional Director w.e.f  01.04.2013 filed pursuant to 
section 303(2),264(2) or 266(1)(a) and 266(1)(b)(iii) of the Act on 16.04.2013.

3. Form 32 in respect of appointment of Mr. Chirayu Amin as a Retiring Director w.e.f 14.08.2013 filed pursuant to section 
303(2), 264(2) or 266(1) (a) and 266(1) (b) (iii) of the Act on 16.08.2013.

4. Form 32 in respect of resignation of Mr. Prayasvin B. Patel from the Directorship w.e.f 01.05.2013 pursuant to section 
303(2), 264(2) or 266(1) (a) and 266(1)(b)(iii) on 27.05.2013.

5. Form 18 in respect of Change of Registered office on 01.04.2013 filed pursuant to section 146 of the Act on 16.04.2013.

6. Form No. 23 in respect of resolutions passed u/s 293(1)(a) as well as 293(1)(d) of the Act by the members of the 
Company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17.06.2013 filed pursuant to section 192 of the Act on 
25.06.2013.

7. Form No. 23 in respect of Special resolution by the members of the Company at their Annual General Meeting held 
on 14.08.2013 approving commission to Non-executive Directors pursuant to section 309 of the Act filed pursuant to 
section 192 of the Act on 21.08.2013.

8. Form 8 in respect of Creation of charge on 20.06.2013 in favour of SBI Consortium filed pursuant to section 138 of the 
Act on 04.07.2013.

9. Form 23AC XBRL (Balance Sheet) as at 31st March, 2013 & 23ACA XBRL (Profit & Loss A/c) for the year ended on March 
31, 2013 filed u/s 220 on 12.09.2013.

10. Form 20B (Annual Return) as at 14.08.2013 filed u/s 159 of the Act on 27.08.2013.

11. Form 66( Compliance Certificate) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2013 filed pursuant to section 383A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and rule 3(2) of the Companies (Compliance Certificate) Rules, 2001 on 27.08.2013.   

12. Form 2 in respect of allotment of 176439 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each on 01.04.2013 filed on 30.04.2013.

13. Form 23C dated 23.05.2013 for Appointment of Cost Auditor for the financial year 2013-14 on 25.06.2013.

14. Form21 dated 01.04.2013 regarding filing of Court order on 01.04.2013.
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INTRODUCTION
Corporate Governance is based on principles such as conducting the business with all integrity and fairness, being 
transparent with regard to all transactions, making all the necessary disclosures and decisions, complying with all the laws 
of the land, accountability and responsibility towards the stakeholders and commitment to conducting business in a most 
ethical and transparent manner and about making a distinction between personal and corporate funds in the management 
of a company.
Corporate Governance involves a set of systems, principles and processes which creates the relationship between the 
company’s management, its board, its shareholders and other stakeholders. Corporate Governance also provides various 
means through which objectives laid by the company are attained and performance of the Company is monitored.

(1) Company’s Philosophy on the code of Governance
 Our Company’s philosophy is to add value to customers’ businesses providing materials, equipment, processes and 

services that allow them to increase efficiency, quality and profitability of their operations while uploading the core 
values of transparency, integrity, honesty, accountability and compliances with laws. Company being unlisted public 
Limited Company, Clause 49 of the listing agreement is not applicable to the Company, but Company is voluntarily 
Complying with code of Corporate Governance in letter and in Spirit.

(2)  Board of Directors
 The Company is managed by the Board of Directors consisting highly qualified and experienced professionals from 

different fields, which formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance periodically.

 Composition
 The Company has Non-Executive Chairman and the number of Non-Executive Independent Directors is 1/3 of the 

total number of Directors. The Board of Directors consists of 3 Directors including one Non-Executive Chairman, one 
non-independent non-executive Director and one independent non-executive Director.

 None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 
Committees (as per Clause 49 (D) (ii) of Listing Agreement) across all the companies in which he is a Director. Necessary 
disclosures have been made by the Directors.

(3) BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES
 (A) Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board Meetings
  i.   The meetings are being convened by giving appropriate advance notice after obtaining the approval of 

the Chairman of the Board. Detailed agenda, management reports and other explanatory statements are 
circulated in advance amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions. To 
address specific urgent need, meetings are also being called at shorter notice. The Board is also authorized 
to pass Resolution by circulation for all such matters, which are of utmost urgent nature.

  ii.  Where it is not practicable to attach any document or the agenda is of confidential nature, the same is placed 
on the table with the approval of the Chairman of the Board. In special and exceptional circumstances, 
additional or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted. Sensitive subject matters are discussed at 
the meeting without written materials being circulated.

  iii.    The agenda papers are prepared by the officials concerned and submitted to the chairman for his approval. 
Duly approved agenda papers are circulated amongst the Board members by the Company Secretary.

  iv.   As per the convenience of the members of the Board, the Board meetings are usually held at the Company’s 
registered office in Vallabh Vidyanagar, Dist. Anand.

  v.     The members of the Board have complete access to all information of the Company. The Board is also free 
to recommend inclusion of any matter in agenda for discussion. Senior management officials are called to 
provide additional inputs to the items discussed by the Board as and when necessary.

 (B) Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting
  A minute of the proceedings of each Board meeting is recorded and the same is read in the next Board Meeting. 

The minutes of the proceedings of the meetings are entered in the Minutes Books and the same are signed by the 
Chairman as prescribed in the Companies Act, 1956.

 (C)  Compliance
  The Company Secretary while preparing the agenda notes is responsible for and is required to ensure adherence 

to all the applicable provisions of law, rules, guidelines etc.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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(4) BOARD MEETINGS
 During the year financial year 2013-2014, the Board Meetings were held on 01/04/2013, 13/05/2013, 23/05/2013, 

14/08/2013, 11/11/2013, 06/02/2014 and the gap between two Board meetings was well within the limit as prescribed 
by the Companies Act, 1956.

 The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and 
at the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorship and Committee positions, as held by them in 
other Public Limited Companies, as on 31st March, 2014 are given below:

 Name of  Nature of  No. of Board  No. of Attendance No. of  No. of Committee
 Directors Directorship Meetings held  Board at AGM other Chairmanship/
   during the  Meetings  Director- Membership
   tenure of Attended  ship Chairman-  Member-
   Directorship    ship ship

 Shri Pradip M. Patel  Non- 6 6 Yes 6 -- 7
 (Chairman) Independent
  Non-Executive
  Director

 Shri Prayasvin B. Patel # Non- 1 1 N. A. 12 - 1
  Independent
  Non-Executive
  Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Non- 6 6 Yes 11 1 4
  Independent      
  Non-Executive      
  Director      

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin@ Independent 6 3 Yes 11 1 3  
  Non-Executive      
  Director 

 # Shri Prayasvin B. Patel has resigned as a Director w. e. f. 01.05.2013.
 @  Shri Chirayu R. Amin has been appointed as a Director w. e. f. 01.04.2013.

 Number of other Directorships held by the Directors, as mentioned above, do not include alternate directorships and 
directorships held in foreign companies, Section 25 Companies and Indian private limited companies and are based on 
the latest declarations received from the Directors.

 The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Independent Non-Executive 
Directors during the financial year 2013-2014.

(5) Disclosure regarding Directors retiring by rotation and being re-appointed:

 Shri Pradipt M. Patel, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself 
for re-appointment.

 A brief resume and the profile of directors retiring by rotation eligible for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting of the Company are given in the notice of Annual General Meeting, annexed to this Annual Report.

 As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, resolution has been proposed for the appointment of Shri Chirayu R. 
Amin, as an independent Director not liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Brief profile 
is attached herewith.

(6) Details of General Meetings

 Location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last 3 years:
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 Year Location Date Day Time No. of Special
      Resolution passed

 2010-11 19-21, Panorama, 2nd Floor,  18-08-2011 Thursday 11.30 a.m. NIL
  R. C. Dutt Road,                                                        
  Vadodara 390 007, 
  India. 
 2011-12 19-21, Panorama, 2nd Floor,  28-09-2012 Friday 11.00 a.m. NIL
  R. C. Dutt Road,                                                        
  Vadodara 390 007, 
  India.
 2012-13 C/o Elecon Engineering  14-08-2013 Wednesday 10.45 a.m. 1 (One)
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 During the year ended 31st March, 2014, no resolution has been passed by the members through Postal Ballot.

(7) Disclosures on Materially significant related party transactions
 Full disclosure of related party transactions as per Accounting Standard - 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India are given under Note No. 32 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(8) Details of Non-compliance by the Company and penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Registrar of 
Companies or any Statutory Authorities during the last three years.

 The Company has complied with the requirements of Registrar of Companies and Statutory Authorities on all matters during 
the last three years. All Returns/Reports were filed within stipulated time with all the statutory authorities.

 No penalties or strictures were imposed by the Registrar of Companies or any other Statutory Authorities during the last three 
years.

(9) Disclosures on Whistle Blower Policy
 Though there is no formal Whistle Blower Policy, the Company takes cognizance of complaints made and suggestions given 

by the employees and others. For the Financial Year 2014-15 Company will adopt Whistle Blower Policy per requirement of 
Companies Act, 2013.

(10) General Shareholders Information 
 a)  Annual General Meeting
  Date and Time   : Monday, 4th August, 2014 at 2.00 p.m.
  venue     : C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Limited,    
                     Anand-Sojitra Road,
           Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388120, Gujarat.

 b)  Financial Calendar   : April 01 to March 31

 c)  Plant Locations   : Works
                                                                    1.  Material Handling Equipment Division (MHE)
                 Anand -Sojitra Road,
                 Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120 Gujarat.
        2.   Plot number 24 situated at Savli Industrial Estate, GIDC, 
         revenue survey numbers 1517/P, 1518/P, 1473/P, 1474/P and 1475/P 
         within the village limits of Manjusar, Taluka Savli, District Vadodara
        3. B/H Eimco Shed
                    Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar -388 120.
                    Dist : Anand, Gujarat.
        4. GIDC Shed -9/2 &9/3, GIDC
         Vithal Udyognagar, Dist : Anand, Gujarat.
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 Address of Regd. Office      : C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road, 
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388120. Gujarat
 Internet website      : www.eleconepc.com
 Address for Correspondence  : Mr. Kamlesh Patel
         Company Secretary
        Elecon EPC Projects Limited
        C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road,
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388120. Gujarat
        Tel. No. (02692) 230166, 237016, 227097
        Fax No. (02692) 227020
        E-mail : kdpatel@eleconepc.com

(12)  Chairman of the Board

 No Separate office is maintained for Non-Executive Chairman and therefore during the year under review, no expenses were 
incurred in connection therewith.

(13)  Shareholder rights to receive financial results

 The financial results of the Company for every quarter/annual are available to the shareholders.

(14)  Postal Ballot

 The provisions relating to Postal Ballot will be complied with in respect of matters where applicable.

(15)  Audit Qualifications

 During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company’s financial statements. The Company continues 
to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of unqualified financial statements.

(16)  Training of Board Members

 All the Non-Executive Directors have adequate experience and expertise in functional areas and attend various programmes 
in their personal capacities that keep them abreast of relevant developments.

(11) Shareholding pattern as on 31-03-2014

 Category No. of Shares held (%) of total

 Elecon Engineering Company Limited 2,70,170 60.49
 Promoters - Individual 6,661 1.49
                    Company 1,62,353 36.36
                     Trust 7,425 1.66
 TOTAL  4,46,609 100.00
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To,
The Members of
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LTD.
Vallabh Vidyanagar

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
ELECON EPC PROJECTS  LIMITED (the “Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards 
referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 (“the Act”) read with General Circular 15/2013 
dated 13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

For  THACKER B UTALA DESAI                                       
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 110864W

                                          M. T.  DESAI                 
Place : Navsari      Partner 
Date :  27-05-2014 Membership No. : 030911

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at March 31, 2014;
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 

profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c)  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2003 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A)
of section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 
5 of the Order.

2.  As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:
 a.  we have obtained al l  the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit;

 b.  in our opinion proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books;

 c.  the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

 d.  in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of 
Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply 
with the Accounting Standards referred to in 
subsection(3C) of section 211 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 read with General Circular 15/2013 dated 
13 September 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013;

 e.  on the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2014, and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2014, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) 
of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

INdEPENdENT AudITOR’s REPORT
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ‘ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation 
of its fixed assets.

 (b) We have been informed that, a portion of the Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management 
during the year in accordance with a programme  of verification in a phased manner and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

 (c) The Company has not disposed off a substantial part of the fixed assets during the year under review. Therefore, 
going concern status of the Company has not been affected.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, inventories were physically verified by the management during the year.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained 
proper records of its inventories and discrepancies noticed on physical verification have been properly dealt 
with in the books of account of the Company.

(iii) (a) According to the information & explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any secured or 
unsecured loan to any party listed in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

 (b) In view of clause (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding interest and other terms and conditions is not applicable.

 (c) In view of clause (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding repayment of loan and interest thereon is not applicable.

 (d) In view of (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding overdue amounts of such loans and interest thereon is not 
applicable.

 (e) According to the information & explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any secured or unsecured 
loan from any party listed in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

 (f ) In view of clause (iii) (e) above, this clause regarding interest and other terms and conditions is not applicable.

 (g) In view of clause (iii) (e) above, this clause regarding repayment of Principal amount and Interest thereon is not 
applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the explanations that 
some of the items purchased are of peculiar nature and/or suitable alternate sources are not available for obtaining 
comparable quotations,  there is an adequate Internal Control system commensurate with the size of the Company 
and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. 
We have not observed any major weakness in the internal control system during the course of the audit.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any contract or 
arrangement with companies, firms or other parties during the year covered in the Register maintained under Section 
301 of the Act. 

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not invited deposits 
from the public during the year. Therefore, provisions of the clause 4(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

(vii) The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out Internal Audit work. The said Internal Audit 
system operating in the Company commensurate with the size of the company and nature of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts 
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and records have been made and maintained.  We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records 
with a view to determining whether they are accurate or complete. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, the Company has generally 
been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Investor Education & Protection 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Cess 
and other material statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, there were no undisputed 
amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education & Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
in arrears as at March 31, 2014 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (c) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid the following statutory dues 
on account of the demand being disputed by the Company.

  Sr. No. Name of Statute Nature Amount ` Period to which Forum where 
      of dues  the amount the Dispute is 
        relates pending
  1. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax / Work  492.12 1991-92 to  Commissioner
    and Sales Tax Acts of Contract Tax Lacs 1995-96 &  (Appeal)
    various states   2006-07

  2. Central Excise Act, 1944.  Excise Duty &  688.73 2006-07, 2007-08 &  C.E.S.T.A.T.
      Penalties Lacs 2010-11 to 2012-13

  3. Central Excise Act, 1944. Excise Duty &  75.46 2008-09 & 2011-12 Central Excise
      Penalties Lacs  Commissioner 
         (Appeal)

(x) According to the records of the Company, it has no accumulated losses. The Company has not incurred cash losses 
during the financial year under review or during the immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information and explanations given by the management, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Financial Institution or Bank. The Company has not issued any 
Debentures. 

(xii) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loan on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities. Therefore, the 
question of adequacy or otherwise of maintenance of documents and records in respect thereof does not arise.

(xiii) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, the Company has not 
indulged in any chit fund activity during the year under review. Therefore, the question of compliance with provisions 
of any special statute applicable to chit fund does not arise.

(xiv) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, the Company has not 
indulged in dealing or trading in shares, securities, debentures and other investments. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, the Company has not 
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions. Accordingly,  paragraph 4 (xv) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any term 
loan during the year under review. Accordingly,  paragraph 4 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the Balance 
Sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term investment.
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For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 110864W

M. T. DESAI 
Place  : Navsari     Partner
Date   : 27-05-2014 Membership No. : 030911

(xviii) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, during the under review, 
the Company has not made any preferential  allotment of shares to the parties  or  companies listed in the register 
maintained  under Section 301 of the Companies Act,1956 except allotment of shares in accordance with a scheme of 
arrangement approved by the Gujarat High Court and Shareholders. Therefore, the question of impact of the prices 
recovered in respect of such shares on the interest of the Company does not arise.

(xix) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, during the year under 
review, the Company has not issued any secured or unsecured debentures. Therefore, the question of creation of 
securities or charge in respect thereof does not arise.

(xx) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information & explanations given to us, during the year under 
review, the Company has not raised any money by way of public issue of shares. Therefore, the question of disclosure 
and verification of end use of money so raised does not arise.

(xxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statement 
and as per information and explanations given by the management, no material frauds on or by the Company were 
noticed or reported during the year under review.
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   (` in Lacs)

         As at  As at
     Notes  31st March, 2014   31st March, 2013

 I.       EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       

 1) SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 

  (a)  Share Capital     3   44.66   44.66 
  (b)  Reserves and Surplus     4   8,820.10   8,650.56 

             8,864.76   8,695.22 
 2) NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES    
  (a)  Long-term borrowings     5   895.75   1,535.69
  (b)  Deferred Tax liabilities (Net)     6   405.30   224.88 
  (c)  Other Long term liabilities     7   8,663.15   8,271.52 
  (d)  Long-term provisions     8   121.03   261.33   

           10,085.23   10,293.42  

 3) CURRENT LIABILITIES          
  (a)  Short-term borrowings     9   20,457.97   29,051.95 
   (b)  Trade payables      24,884.36   24,519.77 
   (c)  Other current liabilities     10   40,118.71   30,304.09 
   (d)  Short-term provisions     11   24.24   1,174.44   

          85,485.28   85,050.25 

    TOTAL        1,04,435.27   1,04,038.89   

II. ASSETS    

 1)  NON - CURRENT ASSETS
  (a)  Fixed assets     12 
   (i)  Tangible assets      8,285.93   9,132.51 
   (ii)  Intangible assets      375.85   282.31 
   (iii) Capital work-in-progress     48.89   190.30   

            8,710.67   9,605.12  
   (b)  Non-current investments      -     -   
   (c)  Long-term loans and advances    13   1,067.58   495.17 
   (d)  Other non-current assets     14   6,446.25   3,660.98   

            16,224.50   13,761.27
 2)  CURRENT ASSETS     
   (a)  Current investments      -     -   
   (b)  Inventories     15   14,189.41   16,942.39 
   (c)  Trade receivables     16   65,201.67   65,193.80 
   (d) Cash and Bank Balances     17   258.28   1,144.43 
   (e) Short-term loans and advances   18   8,433.51   6,914.91 
   (f )  Other current assets     19   127.90   82.09     

            88,210.77   90,277.62  

       TOTAL        1,04,435.27   1,04,038.89 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai  
Partner 
M. No. 030911 H. C. Shah Kamlesh Patel
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-05-2014 Date : 22-05-2014

BALANCE sHEET As AT 31sT MARCH, 2014
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(` in Lacs)

       Year Ended Year Ended
    Notes 31stMarch, 2014   31stMarch, 2013
          
I. Revenue from operations    20 
 a)  Sale of Products (Gross)     48,104.60   66,574.95  
  Less :  Excise Duty      (4,284.67)  (5,706.31)  

   Sale of Products (Net)       43,819.93   60,868.64   

  b)  Sales of Services       5,748.54   4,841.75

  c)  Other Operating Revenues     634.98   731.84

   Total (a+b+c)         50,203.45   66,442.23 

II.  Other Income  21     39.23   415.86 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)       50,242.68   66,858.09   

Iv.  Expenses:
 a. Cost of materials consumed  22   26,320.23   39,631.06
 b.  Changes in inventories of finished goods,  23   1,284.77   (1,245.80)
  work-in progress and Stock-in-Trade  
  c.  Manufacturing expenses and Erection Charges  24   8,606.42   7,677.68 
 d.  Employee benefits expense  25   3,530.93   4,834.79 
 e.  Finance costs   26   3,125.13   3,780.57 
 f.  Depreciation and amortization expense   934.42   850.68 
 g.  Other expenses   27   6,090.82   7,130.34  

  Total Expenses (a to g)       49,892.72   62,659.32 

v.  PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITMES & TAX (III-Iv)    349.96   4,198.77  
vI.   EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS     -     -    
vII.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX (v-vI)     349.96   4,198.77
vIII.  Tax expense :     
  (a)  Current Tax     73.35   1,061.29 
  (b)  Deferred Tax     180.42   223.45 
  (c)  MAT Credit Entitlement     (73.35)  -  

IX.  PROFIT AFTER TAX (vII-vIII)      169.54   2,914.03  
X.  Earnings per Equity Share :
 (1)  Basic     37.96   652.48
 (2)  Diluted     37.96   652.48

 Face Value Per Share (`)    10.00 10.00

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements  

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai  
Partner 
M. No. 030911 H. C. Shah Kamlesh Patel
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-05-2014 Date : 22-05-2014

sTATEMENT OF PROFIT ANd LOss 
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 31sT MARCH, 2014
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   (` in Lacs)

  As on 31-03-2014   As on 31-03-2013
 Amount  Amount Amount             Amount 

[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIvITIES     
 1. Net Profit before Tax     349.96    4,198.77

 2. Adjustments for:    
  (i)    Depreciation and Amortisation  934.42    850.68  
  (ii)  Finance Cost  3,125.13    3,780.57  
  (iii) Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  11.83    -    
  (iv) Interest Income  (13.38)   (16.68) 
  (v)  Bad Debts Written Off  75.00   4,133.00   362.30   4,976.87  

  Operating Profit Before Working    
  Capital Changes  ( 1 + 2 )    4,482.96    9,175.64

 3. Adjustments for Working Capital changes :
   [i]    Trade & Other Receivables
   *  Trade receivables  (82.87)   (55,129.78)
   *  Loans and Advances  (3,897.09)   (10,099.58)

  [ii]   Trade & Other payables   
            *  Trade payables   364.59    16,020.47    
   *  Other payables   10,280.30    49,642.52 

  [iii] Inventories   2,752.98   9,417.91   (13,114.58)  (12,680.95)

  CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) FROM OPERATIONS    13,900.87    (3,505.31) 

 4. Less:  Direct Taxes Paid    (1,025.00)   (1,025.00)

 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIvITIES [A]    12,875.87    (4,530.31)

[B] CASH FLOW FROM INvESTING ACTIvITIES     
 1. Purchase of Fixed Assets  (51.80)   (9,472.99)
 2. Sale of Fixed Assets  -      -   
 3. Consideration for acquisition of MHE  -      (12,732.44)
  Undertaking pursuant to Scheme  
 4. Interest Received  13.38    16.68

 NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN)   (38.42)  (38.42)  (22,188.75)  (22,188.75)
 INvESTING ACTIvITIES [B]

[C] CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIvITIES     
 1. Proceeds from Long Term borrowings  -      2,496.95 
 2. Repayments against Long Term Borrowings  (982.75)   -   
 3. Short Term Borrowings (Net)  (8,593.98)   29,051.95 
 4. Finance cost Paid  (3,154.10)   (3,694.62)
 5. Dividends Paid (incl. tax thereon)  (992.77)   -       

 NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIvITIES [C]   (13,723.60)  (13,723.60)  27,854.28   27,854.28   

[D] NET INCR./(DECR.) IN CASH & CASH EQUIvALENTS [A+B+C]    (886.15)   1,135.22

[E] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year   1,144.43    9.21

[F] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year   258.28    1,144.43

CAsH FLOW sTATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 31sT MARCH, 2014
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(` in Lacs)

  As on 31-03-2014   As on 31-03-2013
 Amount  Amount Amount               Amount

1. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents :- 
 Cash on hand   0.36  -

 Balances with banks   

  In Current Accounts   142.83  1,000.18

     In Fixed Deposit Account   115.09  144.25

  Unclaimed Dividend Account  -  -

     258.28  1,144.43

2.  The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Accounting Standard - 3 on Cash 
Flow Statement notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai  
Partner 
M. No. 030911 H. C. Shah Kamlesh Patel
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-05-2014 Date : 22-05-2014

CAsH FLOW sTATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 31sT MARCH, 2014
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE  
YEAR ENDED 31StMARCH, 2014        
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles [“GAAP’] except for the revaluation of certain fixed assets, in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Accounting Standards as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006, prescribed by the Central Government. However, certain escalation and other claims, which are not ascertainable/
acknowledged by customers, are not taken into account.       

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the Company makes 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the periods, the reported balances 
of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. 
Examples of such estimates include the useful life of tangible and intangible fixed assets, provision for doubtful debts/
advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and 
estimates is recognized in the periods in which the results are known.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 a) Fixed Assets

  i) Tangible Assets:  Fixed Assets are recorded at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price and attributable cost of bringing the Assets 
to its working condition for its intended use, but excludes Cenvat / Service Tax / VAT credit availed.

  ii) Intangible Assets: Intangible Assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

 b) Borrowing Cost
  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of 

funds and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent that they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs.      

  Financing costs relating to borrowed funds attributable to construction or acquisition of fixed assets for the period 
up to the completion of construction or acquisition of fixed assets are included in the cost of the assets to which they 
relate.   

 c) Depreciation & Amortisation
  Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided, on straight line method on Plant and Machinery and on written 

down value method on all other fixed assets, on the basis of the depreciation rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956 or based on useful life of the asset, whichever is higher.      

  Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over estimated useful life as under: -  
  i)  Software & Licenses: over a period of six years      
  ii)  Technical know-how : over a period of six years from the date of actual production.

 d) Inventories
  Inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of 

purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition.    

   The cost of inventories is arrived at on the following basis:

  Raw Materials and stores : Weighted Average Cost.

  Stock-in-process   : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 

  Finished Goods    : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 

 e) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
  Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 

obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities 
are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are neither recognized 
nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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 f) Revenue recognition

  i)  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods are 
transferred to the customer, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Sales are net of discounts, VAT/sales tax  
and returns; excise duties collected.      

  ii)  Income on turnkey contracts (including erection charges) is accounted for on the basis of billings made on 
customers against mutually agreed billing schedules.      

   Advances received from customers in respect of contracts, which are not in relation to work performed thereon, 
are shown as “Advance from Customers”.      

   Amounts retained by customers until satisfaction of conditions specified in the contract for release of such 
amounts are reflected as Sundry debtors.      

   Credits are taken for claims in respect of cost escalation and extra work as and when and to the extent admitted 
by customers.      

  iii)   Interest revenues are recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and 
the rate applicable.      

  iv)  Dividend from investments in Shares is accounted for when the right to receive dividend is established. 

  v)  Export incentives are accounted for as and when the claims thereof have been admitted by the authorities.

  vi)  Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when a reasonable certainty as to its realisation exists. 

 g) Foreign Currency Transactions
  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of the  

transaction.      
  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the year-end rates. In case of items, 

which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year-end rate and the rate on the date 
of contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the 
life of the contract.      

  Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.      
  Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss.      

 h) Retirement Benefits
  Defined Contribution Plan : The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund and ESIC are 

charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year.      
  Defined Benefit Plan: The Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and leave encashment are determined using the 

projected unit credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Past services are recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. Actuarial gain and losses 
are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as income or expense. Obligation is measured at 
the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market 
yields at the balance sheet date on Government bonds where the currency and terms of the Government bonds are 
consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation. 

 i) Impairment of Assets
  Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is then recognised for the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in 
use. 

 j) Accounting for Tax
  (a)  Current Tax is accounted on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year and in 

accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.
  (b)  Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences” between accounting and taxable profit for the period is 

accounted by using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be 
realized in future. Net deferred tax liability is arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets.
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3. SHARE CAPITAL   (` in Lacs)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

Authorised Share Capital 
i)  5,00,000 (Previous Year 5,00,000 of ` 10/- each) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each   50.00   50.00

Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Capital     
4,46,609 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each     
(Previous Year 2,70,170 Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each)     44.66   27.02 

Share Suspense Account      -     17.64   

        Total    44.66   44.66 

(i)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

 Particulars     31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Outstanding at the beginning of the Year    2,70,170   2,70,170 

 Add : Issued During the year    1,76,439   -   

 Outstanding at the end of the Year (Refer Note below)    4,46,609   2,70,170

(ii)  Rights Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares:
 The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of `10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per 

share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. 

 In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of 
all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.     

(iii)  Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent equity shares:

 Particulars     31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid (previous year ` 10/- each fully paid up)

 (a)   Elecon Engineering Company Limited  Nos.   2,70,170   2,70,170
       % Holding   60.49% 100.00%

 (b)   K. B. Investments Pvt. Ltd.   Nos.   50,651   -   
       % Holding   11.34% 0.00%

  (c)   Bipra Investments & Trusts Pvt. Ltd.  Nos.   45,017   -   
       % Holding   10.08% 0.00%

 (d)   Emtici Engineering Limited  Nos.   29,954   -   
       % Holding   6.74% 0.00%

(iv)  Aggregate number of equity shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash Bonus 
Shares issued and shares bought back during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the financial year:-

 Particulars     31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

  (a)  Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation   -    -
   of Share Premium and Reserve.

NOTEs TO FINANCIAL sTATEMENTs 
FOR THE YEAR ENdEd 31sT MARCH, 2014
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014  

4. RESERvES AND SURPLUS   (` in Lacs)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

(a)  General Reserve  
  As per Last Financial Statements    7,029.38   9.37

  Add  :  Amount pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement    -     6,720.01 

  Add  :  Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss     150.00  300.00     

   Closing Balance      7,179.38   7,029.38

(b)  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  
  As per Last Financial Statements    1,621.18  (0.08)

  Add  :  Transferred during the year from Statement of Profit and Loss    169.54  2,914.03

  Less  : Appropriations
    Proposed Dividend (Refer Note 37)    -     848.56
    Tax on Proposed Dividend    -     144.21 
    Transfer to General Reserve    150.00   300.00

   Total Appropriations       150.00   1,292.77   

Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss      1,640.72   1,621.18  

 Total Reserves and Surplus       8,820.10   8,650.56

 

5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

         As at   As at 
         31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 Secured        

  (a)  Term loans         
    From banks       895.75   1,514.22  

  (b)  vehicle Loans         
    From banks       -     21.47   

            895.75   1,535.69   

 (a) Nature of Securities 

  i)  Term Loans [(a) above]  obtained from Indusind Bank Limited is secured by exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation 
on specific assets for which payments were made out of the term loan.  

   Term Loans [(a) above]  obtained from State Bank of India is secured by exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on 
specific assets for which payments were made out of the term loan and hypothecation of two wind turbine Generator 
at Mota Gunda site, Dist. Jamnagar. Further collaterally secured by Hypothecation charge on all unencumbered plant 
and machinery of the company, Corporate guarantee of Emtici Engineering Ltd., Pledge of 34150 Equity shares of 
Eimco Elecon (I) Ltd. and 157850 Equity shares of Elecon Engg. Co. Ltd. & Second charges over Plant & Machinery.

   Term Loans [(a) above]  obtained from Bank of Baroda is secured by Equitable Mortgage of Land, Building, Office 
Purchased at Manjusar,Ta Savli were purchased out of the term loan & Second pari passu charge on entire current 
assets of the company present and future.

(` in Lacs)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014  
(b)  Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans     

 1. Terms Loans

  Lender   31st March, 2014   31st March, 2013  Terms of Repayment 

  (i)   Indusind Bank Ltd.   752.61   1,254.34      Repayable in equated quarterly installments of  
      ̀  175.27 Lacs starting from November 2012. 

  (ii)   Bank of Baroda   143.14   258.44  Repayable in equated monthly installments of 
       ` 9.72 Lacs starting from May 2012 & ` 0.19
       Lacs starting from March 2013.  
  (v)   Axis Bank Limited  - 1.44   Repayable in equated monthly installments of  

      ̀  0.13 Lacs starting from February 2011.

       895.75   1,514.22

 2. vehicle Loans  
  Lender   31st March, 2014   31st March, 2013

  (i)   HDFC Bank Ltd.  - 4.35    Repayable in equated monthly installments.

  (ii)   Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd.  - 17.12     Repayable in equated monthly installments. 

       - 21.47  

(` in Lacs)6.   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 (a)  Deferred Tax Liabilities
   In respect of difference between book & Tax W. D. V.    443.30   265.16 

  (b) Deferred Tax Assets
   In respect of disallowance under the Income Tax Act.   (38.00)  (40.28)

  Net Deferred Tax Liability      405.30   224.88

(` in Lacs)7.   OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

 As at As at
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 (a)   Trade payables    923.05 230.16 

 (b)   Deposits     5.61   6.93 

 (c)   Advance from Customers    7,734.49   8,034.43

             8,663.15  8,271.52

(` in Lacs)8.  LONG-TERM PROvISIONS     

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

  (a)  Provision for employee benefits:       
  Provision for Gratuity      -     58.39   

    Provision for Leave Encashment     121.03  202.94

          121.03   261.33 

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)10.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 (a)  Current maturities of        
   Term Loan (Secured)     618.45   961.26  
   Vehicle Loan (Secured)    -    -

  (b)   Advance from Customers    10,467.95   6,579.29 
  (c)   Interest accrued but not due on borrowings    56.99   85.96 
  (d)   Other Payables    16,064.46   9,282.31
 (e)   Statutory & Other liabilities    167.19  651.60
 (f )   Deposits    11.23  11.23
 (g)   Payable as per Scheme of Arrangement     12,732.44   12,732.44  

          40,118.71   30,304.09 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014  

(i) Nature of Securities {(a) Loans repayable on demand}     

 Working Capital Loans from banks (secured) granted by Consortium of Banks consisting of State Bank of India (As Lead Bank), Bank of Baroda, 
Export Import Bank of India, HDFC Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Limited and Standard Chartered Bank are secured by an equitable 
mortgage on the immovable properties and hypothecation of movable plant and machinery and assets of the Company excluding certain 
assets specifically/ exclusively charged to other banks/ financial institutions but including the whole of the Company’s Currents Assets, 
inventories, receivables and book debts ranking pari passu inter se in respect of working capital facilities  and guarantees issued by them in 
favour of various clients of the Company. Further, the working capital facilities are secured by Corporate Guarantee of Elecon Engineering 
Company Limited.

 Fund base and Non- fund base Working Capital facilities granted by multiple Banks consisting of State Bank of India and Bank of Baroda 
are secured against hypothecation of entire current assets including stocks and book debts, both present as well as future, and second pari 
passu charge on fixed assets (excluding factory shed, office building and roads) of the company present and future. The working capital 
limit with State bank of India, are further collaterally secured by Hypothecation charge on all unencumbered plant and machinery of the 
company,  Corporate guarantee of Emtici Engineering Ltd., Pledge of 34150 Equity shares of Eimco Elecon (I) Ltd. and 157850 Equity shares 
of Elecon Engg. Co. Ltd. & Second charges over Plant & Machinery.

(` in Lacs)9.   SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 Secured        
(a)  Loans repayable on demand:       
 Working Capital Loans

   -  From banks       20,175.97   28,776.45   
 Unsecured        

(a)   Other Loans       
 -  From others     282.00 275.50

         20,457.97   29,051.95

(` in Lacs)11. SHORT-TERM PROvISIONS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 (a)  Provision for employee benefits:
   Provision for Gratuity    -     99.60 
   Provision for Leave Encashment    24.24   27.28 
   Others      -     54.79    

 (b)  Proposed Dividend     -     848.56   

  (c)  Dividend Tax on Proposed Dividend     -     144.21   

              24.24   1,174.44 
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13.  LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADvANCES     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

A. Unsecured, Considered Good 

 (a)  Capital Advances   -     32.20 
 (b)  Deposits  565.77   429.64 
 (c) Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind  0.47   0.47 
 (d) Advance Payment of Tax (net of provision for taxation)  427.99   32.86 
 (e) MAT Credit Entitlement  73.35   -  

        1,067.58   495.17 

15.  INvENTORIES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 At lower of cost or net realisable value      

 (a)  Raw Materials   3,796.25   5,373.08 

 (b)  Raw Materials-in-Transit    -     9.38

 (c)   Semi-Finished Goods    10,112.00   11,396.77 

 (d)  Finished Goods   -     -   

 (e)   Stores and Spares     281.16   163.16 

      14,189.41   16,942.39

16.  TRADE RECEIvABLES       (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Unsecured, Considered Good :      

 (a)   Outstanding for a period exceeding six month from the Due date     29,440.92   20,782.90   
 (b)   Others    35,760.75   44,410.90   

       65,201.67   65,193.80

14.  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 

 (a) Long Term Trade Receivables  6,446.25   3,656.26 

 (b) Deposit with Original maturity of more than 12 months  -     4.72

        6,446.25   3,660.98

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014  
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17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES    (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Cash and Cash Equivalent 

  (a)  Balance with Banks :

   In Current Account   142.83   1,000.18

   Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months   115.09   144.25

   Unpaid Dividend Bank Account   -     -

 (b)   Cash on hand   0.36   -

         258.28   1,144.43

19.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Other Receivables 

  From Others   127.90 82.09

     127.90 82.09

18.  SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADvANCES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 

 (a)  Advances Recoverable in Cash/Kind or for value to be received   6,954.80   5,605.70
 (b)  Balance with Collector of Custom, Port Trust, Excise etc.  892.92   895.65 
 (c)  Prepaid Expenses  524.00   413.56
 (d)  Gratuity paid in Advance  61.79   -

         8,433.51   6,914.91  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

20.  REvENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

  (a)  Sale of Products      

   Material Handling Equipments    43,195.45   59,745.83 

   Export Sales   624.48   1,122.81

       43,819.93   60,868.64
   (b)  Sale of Services      
    Erection Charges   5,748.54   4,841.75
   
  (c)  Other operating revenues      

   Scrap Sales   619.47   716.92 

   Duty Drawback   15.51   14.92   

       634.98   731.84

      50,203.45   66,442.23

21. OTHER INCOME    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 (a)  Interest Income   13.38   16.68 

  (b)  Rent Income   15.82   9.57 

 (c)  Miscellaneous Income    10.03   389.61   

          39.23   415.86

22.  COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED     (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

  Raw Materials Consumed     26,320.23   39,631.06   

        26,320.23   39,631.06  

 a. Raw Materials Consumed in broad heads  :     

  Iron & Steel   8,401.91   9,351.04 
   Forgings   377.11   897.02 
  Bearings   1,078.78   1,382.46 
  Electricals   894.62   1,580.73 
  Castings   4,256.86   4,559.39 
  Hydrulic    2,927.46   4,202.81 
  Gear & Coupling    2,861.02   3,436.20 
  Other Components   5,522.47   14,221.41 

      26,320.23   39,631.06   

 b. Value of Indigenous and Imported Raw Materials Consumed during the year :        

  Imported  Value       1,231.51   2,145.01 
    Percentage     5%  5%

  Indigenous  Value      25,088.72  37,486.06  
    Percentage  95%  95%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

23. CHANGES IN INvENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND  STOCK-IN-TRADE  
 (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 (a)   Opening Stock :      

   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)    11,396.77   -   

    Finished Goods   -     -   

       11,396.77   -   

 (b)   Addition as per Scheme of Arrangement   -     10,150.97  

 (c)   Closing Stock :      

   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)    10,112.00   11,396.77

   Finished Goods   -   -   

       10,112.00   11,396.77

      1,284.77   (1,245.80)   

24.  MANUFACTURING EXPENSES AND ERECTION CHARGES    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 (a)  Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed   651.86   1,085.23 
 (b)  Sub-Contracting Charges   5,652.80   3,975.20 
 (c)  Power and Fuel   414.74   573.08 
 (d) Erection and other charges   1,538.61   1,442.91 
 (e)  Other manufacturing expenses   348.41   601.26 

       8,606.42   7,677.68

  a.  Value of Indigenous and Imported Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed during the year :         

  Imported  Value        47.29   103.76  
    Percentage   7% 10%

  Indigenous  Value        604.57   981.47  
    Percentage  93% 90%

25.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 (a)  Salaries and Wages    3,264.42   4,208.69 
  (Net of Actuarial Valuation ` 84.95 Lacs)    
 (b)  Contribution to Provident Fund   158.37   221.77
 (c)  Employees’ Welfare Expenses   104.08   123.91 
 (d) Employees’ Retirement Benefits    4.06   280.42 
   (Net of Actuarial Valuation ` 217.13 Lacs)   

        3,530.93   4,834.79  
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27. OTHER EXPENSES   (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

  (a)   Technical Know how and Design Fees   139.10   113.26 
 (b)   Rent    893.85   952.46 
 (c)   Computer Software Charges    313.43   297.52 
 (d)  Rates & Taxes    193.79   182.45 
 (e)   Excise Duty (excluding duty recovered from Customers)  0.15 2.15
  (f )   Repairs and Maintenance :      
   Buildings   63.14   160.75 
   Machineries   338.46   498.31
   Others   84.06   83.40   
   (g)   Insurance (net of recoveries)   102.27   114.36 
  (h)   Travelling Expenses   326.16   443.83 
  (i)   Bank Charges    301.86   411.50 
  (j)   Directors’ Fees    2.20   -   
  (k)   Commission to Non Executive Directors    -     120.00 
  (l)   Packing, Forwarding & Distribution Expenses (Net of Recoveries)    653.85   682.08 
  (m)   Commission & Brokerage    1,328.90   929.34 
  (n)   Bad Debts Written Off    75.00   362.30 
  (o)   Liquidated Damages    79.92   429.29 
  (p)   Advertisements & Sales Promotion Expenses    18.26   72.95 
  (q)   Payment to Auditors    16.13   18.47 
  (r)   Donations   11.66    -   
  (s)   Lease Rentals    69.26   37.42 
  (t)   Royalty Paid    27.68   77.68 
  (u)   Technical Inspection Consultancy Fees    -     1.84 
  (v)   Other Professional Consultancy Fees    382.40   455.29 
  (w)   General Administrative Charges    543.71   611.21 
  (x)   Loss on account of Exchange Variation    113.75   28.19 
  (y)   Loss on sale of Fixed Assets    11.83   44.29 

            6,090.82   7,130.34
a. Auditors’ Remuneration   

 Auditors’ remuneration includes the following amounts paid or adjusted as paid to them during the year : 
 (i) As Auditors   11.83   12.00 
 (ii) For Taxation Matters  1.86   1.88 
 (iii) for Company Law Matters  -     -   
 (iv) for Management Services  -     -   
 (v) For Other Services  2.33   3.86 
 (vi) Re-imbursement of Expenses  0.11   0.73 

      16.13   18.47

26.  FINANCE COST       (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

  (a)  Interest Expense    3,029.47   3,738.77 
 (b)  Other Borrowing Cost   95.66   41.80 
 (c)  Applicable Net Gain/Loss on Foreign Currency   -     -
  Transaction/Translation      
      3,125.13   3,780.57 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014
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28.  CONTIGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS     
 (to the extent not provided for)   (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

(a)  Contingent liabilities:

 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt    

 (i) Disputed Excise Duty & Service Tax against Demand Notices received   2,294.18  919.52 
 (ii) Disputed Sales Tax/Works Contract Tax  492.12  347.55 
 (iii) Service Tax disputed & paid under Protest  241.92  191.92
 (iv) Sales Bills Discounted under LC with Banks  892.85  3,926.22
 (v) In respect of arbitration proceeding as directed by Honorable Gujarat  154.19  - 
  High Court in response to an application made by one of the contractor 
  of the company for ` 206.07 Lacs However the company has made a counter 
  claim of ` 200.00 Lacs  with the same arbitrator in response and as per the 
  books of account ` 51.88 Lacs is due to him. 

 Guarantees      

 (i) Guarantees issued by Company’s Bankers   55,460.04  50,701.09  

(b)  Commitments:     
 (i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account   -     -   
  and not provided for     

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS   
 i)   The Gratuity liability & liability in respect of Leave Encashment is determined based on the Actuarial Valuation done by Actuary as at Balance 

Sheet date in context of the Revised AS-15 issued by the ICAI, as follows:-

    Gratuity Leave Encashment
    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2014  31st March, 2013 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

 Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  :-
 Current Service Cost 38.67   49.15   26.10  35.61 
 Interest Cost 49.63   64.55   11.35  17.22 
 Employer Contribution  -     -     -    -   
 Expected Return on Plan Assets (39.55)  (46.93)  -    -   
 Net Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 103.57   10.01   (86.99) 4.86 
 Past Service Cost  -     -     -    -   
 Settlement Cost  -     -     -    -   

 Total Expenses   152.32  76.78   (49.54) 57.69 

 Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  : -     
 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 572.72   823.03   145.27  230.22 
 Fair value of plan assets  634.51   665.04   -    -   
 Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]  61.79  (157.99)  (145.27) (230.22)   
 Net asset / (liability)   61.79   (157.99)  (145.27) (230.22)   
  Current Liability  61.79   (99.60)  (24.24) (27.28)   
  Non Current Liability  -    (58.39)  (121.03) (202.94)

Change in Obligation during the Year :-

 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at 601.53  777.33   137.63   206.76 
 beginning of the year  
 Current Service Cost 38.67   49.15   26.10  35.61 
 Interest Cost  49.63  64.55   11.35  17.22 
 Settlement Cost  -     -     -    -   
 Past Service Cost -  -     -     -   
 Employer Contributions  -     -     -     -   
 Liability Transferred in  -     -     157.28   -
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 Change in Assets during the Year :-
  Plan assets at the beginning of the year settlements  454.56   552.17 
  Expected return on plan assets 39.55   46.93 
  Contributions by Employer 0.99  143.95 
  Transfer from other company  360.08  -   
  Actual benefits paid (244.70)  (71.00)
  Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 24.02   (7.01)
  Plan assets at the end of the year 634.50   665.04 

 Expected contribution during the year - - -     -

 Actuarial Assumptions:
  Discount Rate 9.33% 8.25% 9.33% 8.25%
  Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70% - -
  Mortality pre retirement -   -  
  Turnover rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Rate of escalation in salary (p.a.) 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

    Gratuity Leave encashment

    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2014  31st March, 2013 31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

  a.   The rate of escalation in Salary (p.a.) considered in actuarial valuation is worked out after taking into account inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.  Mortality rates are 
obtained from the relevant data of Life Insurance Corporation of India.

  b.  The “Assets” for the gratuity ` 61.78 Lacs (previous year liability of ` 157.98 Lacs) as shown in the balance sheet is after 
adjusting the Fair value of plan assets (Invested with LIC/SBI) as at March 31, 2014 of ` 634.51 Lacs (previous year ` 665.04 
Lacs).

 iii)  The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the 
year of ` 101.74 Lacs (Previous Year ` 150.21 Lacs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS  (Contd...)

30.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

 The Company has only one reportable segment i.e. “Material Handling Equipment” and hence disclosures requirement of Accounting 
Standard 17 (AS 17 - Segment Reporting) notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are not given.     
    

31. EARNING PER SHARE  (` in Lacs, except per share data)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “ Earning Per Share” 
(Before and after extraordinary items)   

 a) Profit for Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share as per Statement of Profit and Loss  169.54  2,914.03 
 b) Weighted average number of equity shares  4,46,609  4,46,609 
 c) Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted) 37.96  652.48 
 d) Face Value per Share  10.00  10.00

(` in Lacs)

 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 127.59   3.00   (86.99) 4.86
 Benefits Payments (244.70)  (71.00)  (100.10) (34.24)   

 Present value of Defined Benefit  
 Obligation at the end of the year  572.72   823.03   145.27   230.22
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32.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 18 are given below:

A)  Name of the related parties and nature of relationships :     

 a) Holding Company 
  (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited

 b) Fellow Subsidiaries 
  (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO   
  (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited   
  (iii) Elecon Transmission International Limited, Mauritius   
  (iv) Benzlers Systems AB, Sweden   
  (v) Radicon Transmission UK Limited, U.K.   
  (vi) AB Benzlers, Sweden   
  (vii) Elecon USA Transmission Limited, USA   
  (viii) Benzlers Transmission A.S., Denmark   
  (ix) Benzlers Antriebstechnik GmbH, Germany   
  (x) Benzlers TBA B.V., Netherlands   
  (xi) Benzlers Antriebstechnik Gesmbh, Austria   
  (xii) OY Benzlers AB, Finland   
  (xiii) Benzlers SDN BDH Malaysia   
  (xiv) Benzlers Italia s.r.l.   

 c) Individual having control/ significant influence   
  (i) Shri Prashant C. Amin

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

B)  Nature of Transactions :  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 Purchase of Material / fin. Goods
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   4,034.89  5,099.40 
  (ii)  Eimco Elecon Electricals Limited  -  768.55 
  (iii)  Others  -    795.17

 Job work Income from other Co.   
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   1.44   27.49 
  (ii)  Others   -    3.48

 Job work Expenses to other Co.
  (i)  Speciality Wood Pack Private Limited   -     9.99 
  (ii)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   59.71  7.80 
  (iii)  Others   -     1.01 

 Sale of Fin. Goods/ Consumable Stores
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  711.78   56.83 
  (ii)  Power Build Limited   -     315.68 
  (ii)  Elecon Middle East FZCO   -     74.40 
  (iv)  Others  -     31.86 

 Purchase of Fixed Assets
  (i)  Elecon Information Technology Limited    -    31.47

 Sale of Fixed Assets
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited     44.31    -

 Expenses Charged to other Co.
  (i)  Elecon Information Technology Limited   -     16.70 
  (ii)  Emtici Engineering Limited  -  2.85 
  (iii)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   21.55   -   
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 Exp. Charged by other Co.  
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   481.05   524.78 
  (ii)  Akaaish Mechatronics Limited  -     416.43 
  (iii)  Elecon Information Technology Limited   -     250.31 
  (iv)  Prayas Engineering Limited   -     192.60 
  (v)  Others   -     349.87 

 Sales Commission  
  (i)  Elecon Middle East FZCO  4.37   45.01 
  (ii)  Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited  35.16   -   

 Others        
  (i)  Emtici Engineering Limited  - 13.22

 Slump sale of MHE Undertaking pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement     
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  - 12,732.44 

 Deposit / Loan / Advances received     
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  - 2,025.00

B)  Nature of Transactions (Conti..) :  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013

C)  Balance at Year End:  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 (i) Outstanding Payables: 
  (a) Holding Company     
   Elecon Engineering Company Limited  33,434.67  19,856.84

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO  -  37.23
   (ii) Others  - 0.30

  (c) Enterprises over which Note No. 32(A)(c) of above have significant influence   
   (i) Eimco Elecon Electricals Limited   -    348.36 
   (ii) Prayas Engineering Ltd.    -    194.76 
   (iii) Emtici Engineering Limited   -    200.89 
   (iv) Power Build Limited   -    100.60 
   (v) Akaaish Mechatronics Ltd.   -    36.00 
   (vi) Bipra Investments & Trusts Pvt. Ltd.   -    48.00 
   (vii) K. B. Investments Pvt. Ltd.   -    139.50 
   (viii) Kirloskar Power Build Gear Ltd.   -    32.50 
   (ix) Speciality Wood Pack Private Limited   -     -   
   (x) Elecon Information Technology Limited   -     -   
   (xi) Devkishan Investments Private Limited  -  -   
   (xii) Elecon Peripherals Limited   -     -   
   (xiii) Others   -    175.84

 (ii)  Outstanding Receivables:     
  (a) Holding Company     
   (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited   152.98  -

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited  -    0.29

  (c) Enterprises over which Note No. 32(A)(c) above have significant influence    
   (i) Power Build Limited  -     153.46 
   (ii) Prayas Engineering Ltd.   -  459.26 
   (iii) Emtici Engineering Limited  -  1,990.72
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2014

33.  DISCLOSURES SPECIFIED BY THE MSMED ACT   
 The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 and hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable 
under this Act could not been given.

34.  CIF vALUE OF IMPORTS      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 a) Raw Material  1,231.51  1,815.45 
 b) Stores and Spares  47.29  89.88 
 c) Capital Goods  19.71  2,395.74

36.  EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE    (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 a) Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis       
  Material Handling Equipments  784.11  1,122.81

 b) Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees  -    6.92 

 c) Service Income  15.63   -   

37.  PROPOSED DIvIDEND     
 The Board of Directors have proposed equity dividend of ` Nil (Previous Year ` 190.00) per equity share of ` 10.00 each. 
 The aggregate amount of equity dividend proposed to be distributed is ` Nil (Previous Year ` 992.77 Lacs) Including Dividend 

Distribution Tax of ` Nil (Previous year ` 144.21 Lacs).     

38.  Figures of previous years are regrouped and recast wherever necessary

39.  Note 1 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Signature to Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss and Note 1 to 37.

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai  
Partner 
M. No. 030911 H. C. Shah Kamlesh Patel
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 27-05-2014 Date : 22-05-2014

35.  EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2014 31st March, 2013 

 a) Interest   21.04   42.31 

 b) Technical Consultancy Fees  22.82   20.89 

 c) Others  50.81  156.58
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIvEN THAT the 23rd Annual General 
Meeting of members of Elecon EPC Projects Limited will be 
held at the Registered Office of the Company at C/o Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited, Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh 
Vidyanagar - 388120 on Monday, the 4th day of August, 
2014 at 2.00 p.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance 

Sheet as at 31st March 2014, Statement of Profit 
& Loss for the year ended on that date and Cash 
Flow Statements along with the Report of Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Pradip M. Patel, 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offer 
himself for re – appointment.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLvED that pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Chirayu Amin (Holding 
DIN-00242549), Director of the Company who retires 
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and in 
respect of whom the Company has received a notice 
in writing from a member proposing his candidature 
for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director of the Company to hold 
office for five consecutive years for a term up to 31st 

March, 2019.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLvED THAT in Supersession of an Ordinary 
Resolution adopted at the Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 17th June, 2013 and pursuant to 
Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the company 
hereby accord its consent to Board of Directors 
to borrow any sums of money from time to time, 
from any one or more of the company’s bankers / 
any other bankers and /or from any one or more 
other persons, firms, bodies corporate or financial 
institutions and whether unsecured or secured, 

in Indian or foreign currency or by mortgage, 
charge, hypothecation or lien or pledge of the 
company’s assets and properties, stock in trade 
(including raw materials, stores, spare parts and 
components installed or in transit) and all or any of 
the undertaking of the company notwithstanding 
that the monies to be borrowed together with the 
moneys already borrowed by the company (apart 
from temporary loans obtained from company’s 
bankers in ordinary course of business) will or 
may exceed the aggregate of paid up capital of 
the company or its free reserves, i. e. reserve not 
set apart for any specific purpose, but so however, 
that total amount up to which the moneys may be 
borrowed by the Board of Directors and outstanding 
at any time shall not exceed the sum of ` 750 Crores 
exclusive of interest and other charges in excess of 
aggregate of paid up capital and free reserves of 
the company and the Board of Directors be hereby 
further authorised to delegate the power to borrow 
to the extent they may deem fit, to Committee of 
Directors, or to execute such deed of mortgage, 
charge, hypothecation, lien, promissory notes, 
depository receipt and other deeds and instruments 
or writings as they may think fit and containing such 
conditions and covenants as the Board of Directors 
may think fit.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifications, the following Resolution 
as a Special Resolution:

 “RESOLvED THAT in Supersession of an Ordinary 
Resolution adopted at the Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 17th June, 2013, Company do 
hereby accord its consent under Section 180 (1) 
(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 to mortgage and / or charge 
by the Board of Directors of the company of all or 
any of the immovable and/or movable properties 
of the company wherever situated both present 
and future, or the whole or substantially whole of 
the undertaking or undertakings of the company, 
in such form and in such manner as the Board of 
Directors may think fit, together with power to take 
over the management of the business and concern 
of the company in certain event, for securing any 
loans and / or advances already obtained or that 
may be obtained from any financial institutions / 
banks / insurance companies or person or persons 
and / or to secure any debentures issued and / or 
that may be issued and all interest, compound /
additional interest, commitment charges, costs, 
charges, expenses and all other moneys payable 
by the company to the concern lenders within the 

NOTICE
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overall limits of a sum not exceeding  ` 750 Crores in excess of aggregate of paid up capital and free reserves of the 
company outstanding at any one time as loans from Banks, Financial Institutions or elsewhere.”     

 RESOLvED THAT the Board of Directors be are hereby further authorized to delegate the power to mortgage or 
charge the abovementioned to a Committee of Directors to the extent as they may consider necessary.” 

 By order of Board of Directors

Kamlesh Patel
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road,
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
   
Date  : 22-05-2014 

1. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is also entitled to appoint a Proxy/Proxies to attend 

and vote instead of himself and Proxy/ Proxies need not be a member of the Company. A person can act as proxy 
on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company.

3. The proxy form/s, duly stamped and executed in order to be effective should reach at the registered office of the 
company at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting.

4. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 days 
before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

5. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statement are open for inspection at the 
registered office of Company on all working days between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. prior to date of Annual General 
Meeting.

6. Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the meeting. Spare copies will not be available.
7. Members holding the shares in physical mode are requested to notify immediately for change of their address and 

bank particulars to the Company.

 By order of Board of Directors

Kamlesh Patel
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
   
Date  : 22-05-2014

NOTEs
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.
Item No. 4
Shri  Chirayu   Amin  is  a  Non-Executive  Independent Director  of  the  Company. He joined the Board of Directors of the Company on 1st April, 
2013. He is also Chairman of Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Company. 
At present,   Shri  Chirayu   Amin  is  Chairman  cum-Managing  Director   of  Alembic Limited. He has been appointed as Director of Alembic 
Limited on 20-08-1967. He was appointed as Managing   Director in Alembic Limited in 1983.  During   his tenure as Managing Director, the 
Company has been able to maintain the growth in sale despite very   keen competition in   pharmaceutical industry.  Export   sale, which   has   
been identified as a major thrust area, shown sizable growth.  In addition to this, a lot of restricting  has  been  done  in  respect  of manpower 
planning and  business  strategy  of introducing new  products and  concentrating on  some  selected  brands  for  achieving sustainable 
competitive edge.
He is a Director  in Alembic Pharmaceuticals Ltd., Alembic Ltd., Alembic  Export  Ltd., Shreno  Ltd.,  Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Nirayu  
Private  Ltd., Paushak  Ltd.,  AGI Developers Ltd., Quick  Flights Ltd.,  Sierra  Investments  Ltd.,  Sierra   Healthcare  Ltd.  and   Panasonic   Energy   
India Company Ltd.; a Member of Shareholders’/ Grievance Committee of Paushak Ltd. & Member of Audit Committee & Shareholders’/ Grievance 
Committee of Elecon Engineering Company Limited.
He does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company.
Shri  Chirayu  Amin  is a director  whose  period  of office is liable  to determination  by retirement of directors by rotation  under  the erstwhile 
applicable  provisions  of the Companies Act, 1956. In terms of Section 149 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,  Shri  
Chirayu   Amin  being  eligible  and   offering   himself  for appointment,  is  proposed  to  be  appointed  as  an   Independent  Director   for  five 
consecutive years for a term  up to  31st March, 2019. A notice has been received from a member proposing Shri Chirayu Amin as a candidate 
for the office of Director of the Company.
In the opinion of the Board, Shri Chirayu Amin fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act,   2013 and   rules   made   there under for   his   
appointment as   an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the management. Copy of the  draft  letter  for  appointment 
of Shri  Chirayu   Amin  as  an  Independent  Director setting  out the terms and  conditions would  be available  for inspection without any fee 
by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal  business  hours on any working day, excluding Sunday.
The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services 
of Shri Chirayu Amin as an Independent Director.  Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Shri Chirayu 
Amin as an Independent Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company.
Except Shri Chirayu Amin, being an appointee,  none of  the  Directors  and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial  or otherwise, in 
the resolution set out at Item No. 4.

Item No. 5
The members of the Company at its at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 17th June, 2013 approved by way of an Ordinary Resolution 
under Section 293(1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 borrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of 
the Company provided that total amount of such borrowings together with the amounts already borrowed and outstanding at any point of 
time shah not in excess of Rs. 500 Crores. 
Section 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 12th September, 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not borrow money 
in excess of companies paid up capital and free reserves, apart from temporary loans obtained from companies bankers in the ordinary course 
of business, except with the consent of the Company accorded by way of a Special Resolution.
It is, therefore, necessary for the Board to pass and to propose a Special Resolution under Section 180(1) (c) and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for members’ approval as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.
None of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 5.

Item No. 6
The members of the Company at its at its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 17th June, 2013 approved by way of an Ordinary Resolution 
under Section 293(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 1956 to sell, mortgage and/or charge all or any of the immovable and/or movable properties 
of the Company or the whole or substantially whole of the undertaking or undertakings of the Company. 
Section 180(1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective from 12th September, 2013 requires that the Board of Directors shall not sell, mortgage 
and/or charge all or any of the immovable and/or movable properties of the Company wherever situated both present and future, or the whole 
or substantially whole of the undertaking or undertakings of the Company without the consent of the Company accorded by way of a Special 
Resolution.
It is, therefore, necessary for the Board to pass and to propose a Special Resolution under Section 180(1) (a) and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for members’ approval as set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice. 
None of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No. 6.

By order of Board of Directors

Kamlesh Patel
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
   
Date  : 22-05-2014 
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Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Name of Director

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Expertise in specific 
Functional areas

Qualifications

List of Public/Private 
Companies in which 
outside Directorship held 
as on 31st March, 2014 

Shri Pradip M. Patel

05-11-1947

18-05-2012  

Associated with the Bearing Industry for over three 
decades.
Joined ABC Bearings Limited on 7th September, 1973.
Director in ABC Bearings Limited since 1st August, 1986 
& Managing Director since 1st August, 1991.

M.B.A. (U.S.A.)

- ABC Bearings Limited
- Eimco Elecon (I) Limited
- Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Power build Limited
- NSK-ABC Bearings Limited
- Emtici Engineering Limited
- Manoway Investment Pvt. Ltd.
- Ziwani Properties Pvt. Ltd.
- Mipco Investments Pvt. Ltd.
- Maple Investments Co. Pvt. Ltd.
- Emsons Leasing Co. Pvt. Ltd.
- Taveta properties  Pvt. Ltd.
- Elecon Epc Projects Limited
- Excel EPC Projects Pvt. Ltd.

Shri Chirayu R. Amin

04-12-1946

01-04-2013

Shri Chirayu R. Amin has been appointed as 
Director of Alembic Limited on 20-08-1967.

He was appointed as Managing Director in 
Alembic Limited in 1983. At present, he is 
Chairman cum-Managing Director of Alembic 
Limited. During his tenure as Managing Director, 
the Company has been able to maintain the 
growth in sale despite very keen competition 
in pharmaceutical industry. Export sale, which 
has been identified as a major thrust area, 
shown sizable growth. In addition to this, a 
lot of restricting has been done in respect of 
manpower planning and business strategy of 
introducing new products and concentrating on 
some selected brands for achieving sustainable 
competitive edge.

M.B.A. (U.S.A)

- Alembic Pharmaceuticals Limited  
- Alembic  Limited 
- Alembic Export Limited
- Shreno Limited
- Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Nirayu Private Limited 
- Paushak Limited 
- AGI Developers Limited 
- Quick Flights Limited.
- Sierra Investments Limited.
- Sierra Healthcare Limited
- Panasonic Energy India Company limited

Chairman/Member of the 
Committees of the Public 
Companies on which he is 
a Director as on 31st March 
2014.

ABC Bearings Limited
- Member of Transfer –cum shareholders/Investors  
 Grievance Committee.-

Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Member of Audit Committee & Transfer –cum  
 shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee

Eimco Elecon (I) Limited
- Audit Committee - Member
 Remuneration Committee - Member

Power Build Limited
- Audit Committee –Member

Elecon EPC Projects Limited
- Members of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  
 Committee

Paushak Limited
- Investors/Shareholders 
 Committee – Member
Elecon Engineering Co. Limited
-  Audit Committee – Member
   Shareholders/Grievance Committee – 
   Chairman
   Remuneration Committee-Member

Elecon EPC Projects Limited
- Chairman of Corporate Social Responsibility
 (CSR) Committee



14




